1990

# Layton City v. Frank R. Aragon : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF APPELLATE COURT

This Court has jurisdiction to review the judgment entered in the Second Circuit Court in accordance with Section 78-2a-3(2)(d), Utah Code Annotated.

ISSUES OF APPEAL

1. Did the Circuit Court err in failing to suppress the verbal statement of Defendant obtained by Layton City police officers and in admitting such statement into evidence during the jury trial. The standard for review as to this issue is whether the defendant knowingly and intelligently waived his right of self-incrimination as to the claim that a Miranda warning was not given to him and this Court does not accord any particular deference to the trial court's conclusions but rather reviews them for correctness. State v. Sampson, 143 Utah Adv. Rep. 12, 14 (Utah App. 1990). As a second ground for wrongfully admitting the statement of Defendant did the lower court abuse its discretion in admitting such statement when the state had failed to establish independent evidence of the corpus delicti of

driving while under the influence? State v. Anderson, 561 P.2d 240 (Utah 1977); Pearce v. Wistisen, 701 P.2d 489, 491 (Utah 1985); Ostler v. Albinia Transfer Co., Inc., 781 P.2d 445, 447 (Utah App. 1989).

2. Excluding the wrongfully admitted statement of the defendant, was there sufficient evidence presented by the prosecutor to sustain the conviction for driving under the influence. The standard of review for this issue is whether there is sufficient evidence from which findings of all the requisite elements of the crime can reasonably be made. State v. Booker, 709 P.2d 342 (Utah 1985); State v. Petree, 659 P.2d 443 (Utah 1983).

#### CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

No person . . . shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law. Amendment 5 to the United States Constitution.

In criminal prosecutions . . . the accused shall not be compelled to give evidence against himself. Article 1, Section 12, Utah State Constitution.

#### NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a criminal conviction of Defendant in the Second Circuit Court, Layton Department, for the offense of driving while intoxicated.

#### COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS BELOW

On February 7, 1990 an information was filed by the City of Layton against defendant Frank Aragon charging him with driving



under the influence of alcohol, delaying and obstructing an officer, and disorderly conduct. [Note: For some unexplained reason there are two separate pleading files which have been docketed with the Clerk of this Court. Defendant's counsel does not understand the necessity of these two files since they are basically in duplicate. The order of the various documents, however, is different and some files contain documents that are not contained in the other. Since it will occasionally be necessary to refer to both files during this brief Appellant will designate the file dated May 21, 1990 as File No. I and the file dated August 20, 1990 as File No. II.].

On August 28, 1989 Defendant moved to dismiss the charges filed against him on the basis there was no evidence legally sufficient to entitle prosecution and to suppress evidence. (R.I., 17) On September 28, 1989 a hearing was held before the Honorable K. Roger Bean for the purpose of determining Defendant's motion to suppress evidence. (R.I., 121; 101-111). The lower court denied Defendant's motion on October 27, 1989. (R.I., 95-96; see "Memorandum of Decision" contained in Addendum to this Brief).

On January 9, 1990 Defendant filed a motion to reconsider the previous ruling on Defendant's motion to dismiss based upon a decision of the Honorable John A. Rokich, Third District Judge, in an appeal from the Department of Motor Vehicles determination that Defendant would lose his license for failing to submit to a blood alcohol test. Judge Rokich reversed the determination of the Department and found that the officers had no probable cause

to arrest the petitioner for driving under the influence at the time the arrest was made. (R.I., 91, 89-90; see "Memorandum of Decision", Aragon v. Schwendiman contained in the Addendum to this Brief). The lower court on February 7, 1990 denied Defendant's motion to reconsider. (R.I., 84; see "Memorandum of Decision" dated February 7, 1990 in the Addendum to this Brief).

A jury trial was held on February 8 and February 9, 1990 before the Honorable K. Roger Bean. At the conclusion of the City's case Defendant moved to dismiss. (Trial Trans., 182-37). The lower court denied these motions. (Trial Trans., 188). The following day defense counsel presented arguments in support of his previous motion to strike any testimony of the defendant that had been elicited from the officers making the arrest. The Court took this motion under advisement. (R.I., 199). It was never ruled upon. A verdict was returned by the jury finding Defendant guilty of driving while under the influence of alcohol, guilty of delaying and obstructing an officer, and guilty of disorderly conduct. (R.I., 12). On April 16, 1990 Defendant was sentenced to four days in jail, fined \$750 and placed on probation for twelve months. (R.I., 10). On May 16 Defendant filed his Notice of Appeal. (R.II., 26). This appeal is taken only from the DUI conviction.

On June 19, 1990 Defendant filed an application for a Certificate of Probable Cause and Stay requesting the lower court to prevent Defendant's license from being suspended during the pendency of an appeal to this Court on the basis that the suspension of the license would most probably be completed before

this Court could review the conviction. The lower court denied a stay on the basis that it had no jurisdiction over the driver's license division and that such effort would have to be made in the District Court or the Court of Appeals. (R.II., 14-15).

On July 17, 1990 Defendant filed a petition for stay of execution pursuant to Rule 27 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure before this Court. (R.II., 9-13). The matter was remanded to the lower court for consideration. After a hearing, the district court denied the stay. (R.II., 8). This Court subsequently issued an opinion that it would not decide the stay issue.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The basic facts in this case are essentially undisputed. One or more of the arresting officers testified in four separate proceedings related to the incident occurring on April 2, 1989. These proceedings included a driver's license revocation hearing before the Department of Motor Vehicles, a trial de novo before the Honorable Third District Judge John Rokich in an appeal from the Department of Motor Vehicle decision, a hearing concerning Defendant's motion to dismiss in the Second Circuit Court, and a jury trial in the Second Circuit Court. For purposes of this appeal the most complete factual scenario of what occurred on April 2, 1989 is contained in the September 28, 1989 suppression hearing transcript. As will be noted later in this brief certain portions of the evidence that was given during the suppression hearing was not introduced during the jury trial because of hearsay objections. These exclusions will be noted in detail

infra as it relates to the jury trial and the evidence upon which Defendant was convicted. However, for purposes of this Brief the suppression hearing will be principally utilized as a basis for the statement of facts.

At approximately 1:40 in the morning three Layton City officers were dispatched to an address within Layton City on the basis that a family fight was in progress. (Suppression Hearing transcript, p. 10; hereinafter SH). As the officers arrived they observed a male and female standing in a driveway next to a car which was running and which had its lights on. The man was standing next to the car on the right-hand passenger side. (SH, 11). A male and a female officer approached the couple who at that time did not appear to be having any kind of dispute. (SH, 12). The female officer began talking to the woman and the male officer began talking to the man who was the defendant Frank Aragon.

The conversation between the male officer and Defendant became aggitated. The male officer, John Lynch, stated that as soon as he began talking to Defendant he could smell alcohol and that he noticed Defendant had glassy eyes. (SH, 59). While the officer was questioning Defendant, the officer testified that the defendant became irritated and started to approach him. The officer stated that he pushed him back at which time Defendant doubled up his fist and made threatening comments. (SH, 60). As the confrontation increased the third officer came up from behind and told Defendant that he was under arrest for disorderly conduct. The two officers then wrestled the defendant to the

ground and handcuffed him. (SH, 61). The defendant sustained an injury to his cheek at the time he hit the pavement which was lightly termed "road burn". (SH, 41). After the defendant was restrained he was told that he was being placed under arrest for disorderly conduct. (SH, 20, 68).

The officers then took the defendant and placed him in the back seat of Officer Sharon Beckett's police automobile. (SH, 19). At that time he was handcuffed, seatbelted and was therefore unable to leave the vehicle. (SH, 19). It is undisputed that Defendant was not present during any of the subsequent conversations that the officers had with various individuals.

Officer Lybbert and Officer Beckett interviewed a woman named June Trujillo who was present at the house where the car had been parked. Ms. Trujillo told the officers that the defendant had been in the house earlier but that he had been there with a friend. She said she did not know who the person was and that she did not know whose vehicle was in the driveway. (SH, 24).

In the meantime, the other officer, John Lynch, talked to Rose Aragon, Defendant's wife, who was the female standing near him at the time the officers came to the scene. Officer Lynch asked her how the defendant got to the house and she stated he drove. (SH, 62). He then talked to a young lady named Nicki Trujillo who also said that Defendant had driven there. (Id.).

While this questioning was going on by Officer Lynch, Sgt. Lybbert and Officer Beckett returned to the police vehicle to

question the defendant. At that point Defendant had already been placed under arrest for disorderly conduct and was sitting quietly in the back seat of the vehicle. The officers opened the left rear door of the vehicle in order to talk with him. (SH, 27). Officer Lybbert asked the defendant who his friend was. (SH, 25). He responded that he was there by himself and that he had driven there three or four minutes before the police arrived. (SH, 28-29, 54-55).

During this interview with the defendant Sgt. Lynch was speaking with June Trujillo. She told him that the defendant had come to the house earlier with a friend just as she had previously told the same story to Sgt. Lybbert. Officer Lynch then talked to Sgt. Lybbert who told him that Defendant said there was no friend which made Officer Lynch assume that Ms. Trujillo was telling him a story. He therefore returned to her and gave her a Miranda warning informing her that if she was telling him a story she could be charged with obstructing an investigation. At that time she said she didn't know anything. (SH, 63).

Officer Beckett stated that during this period of time that Defendant was parked in her police vehicle she did not have any information concerning the ownership of the car. (SH, 29). It was not until she returned to the jail and ran a vehicle check that she discovered that the vehicle parked in the driveway was registered to the defendant. (SH, 37).

Since the defendant was already under arrest while sitting in the back of the vehicle Officer Beckett did not believe that

she specifically told him that he was also being placed under arrest for driving under the influence. She had been instructed by Sgt. Lybbert to file the DUI paperwork since she was the only officer still on shift while at the police station. It is undisputed that during the entire period at the arrest site and in the police vehicle Defendant was never given the Miranda warning. (SH, 55).

Several additional facts which were not brought out in the suppression hearing but were elicited during the trial complete the factual story. Officer Lybbert testified that upon searching the vehicle in the driveway he discovered one full beer can and one empty can. (Trial Trans., 117). The car was ultimately turned off by June Trujillo. (Trial Trans., 118). Officer Lybbert further testified that because of the confusing statements given by the witnesses he did not have any real idea who drove the automobile to the house until he spoke to Defendant who verified that he was the driver. (Trial Trans., 124-130).

Upon arriving at the jail Officer Beckett asked Defendant if he would submit to a breath test. Defendant requested to talk to a lawyer at which time he was informed that the right to counsel and the right to remain silent does not apply to the implied consent law and that he would lose his license if he did not take the test. (Trial Trans., 164-65). After Defendant refused to take the test Officer Beckett gave him the Miranda warning. When asked whether he wished to answer any questions he then informed her that he did not. (Trial Trans., 166). Subsequently, Defendant informed her that he was now willing to submit to a

blood but not a breath test. She did not give him a blood test and subsequently placed him in a cell for the evening. (Trial Trans., 167).

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The lower court erred in failing to suppress the statements of Defendant that he was the driver of the automobile and that he had driven it there at the scene some three or four minutes before the police arrived. This statement should not have been allowed to go to the jury for two reasons. First, the statement was made while defendant was handcuffed, seatbelted, injured and physically restrained in the back of Officer Beckett's police vehicle. At no time while he was at the scene of the incident or in the police vehicle did he receive the Miranda warning. Defendant had already been arrested for disorderly conduct and was basically restrained while the officers investigated the circumstances. He was neither given a Miranda warning for the disorderly conduct charge nor for the driving under influence charge even though the officers strongly suspected that he had driven the automobile to the scene in an intoxicated condition after speaking with several witnesses.

As a second alternative ground for suppressing the statement of the defendant, the State failed to prove the corpus delicti of the charge of driving under the influence without the admission of the defendant. At trial, the State did not produce any witnesses who allegedly saw the defendant driving the automobile or could have testified when the automobile was driven and the condition of the defendant when he was driving it. Without



Defendant's admission that he was the driver and that he had only been there three or four minutes there is no evidence sufficient to establish a corpus delicti and therefore the admission should have been excluded.

2. When the admission of the defendant is excluded from the evidence introduced at trial there is simply nothing left for which a jury could convict the defendant of driving under the influence. Taking the evidence most favorably for the State shows that Defendant was intoxicated while standing next to his vehicle which had its motor on and its lights on. Such evidence is clearly insufficient to convict Defendant of driving while intoxicated.

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING  
DURING THE TRIAL THE STATEMENTS OF  
DEFENDANT MADE TO THE ARRESTING  
OFFICERS WHILE RESTRAINED IN A  
POLICE VEHICLE.

During the jury trial of this matter Officer John Lybbert was called as a witness on behalf of the State.

Q. (By Prosecutor) Okay. You talked to other people that were there, too, didn't you?

A. Yes. I did.

Q. Okay. And that would be, I guess Rose Aragon?

A. Yes. Rose Aragon, June Trujillo.

Q. Okay. And during that conversation with them, you discussed the incident as it had occurred?

A. Yes. I did.

Q. From that, you made a determination; is that

right?

A. Yes. I did.

Q. What did you determine?

A. I determined that Mr. Aragon was the driver of the car when it arrived.

Q. Okay.

MR. LONG: Your Honor, I would have to move to strike that answer as being nonresponsive to the question. I mean, there is no way to object when he says what conclusion did you make and he comes out--off the wall with what he came up with.

THE COURT: I agree there is no way to object to that, but what do you claim as the basis for the objection?

MR. LONG: Well he is going to the truth of the matter asserted and he is making a generalization as to what he came to this conclusion without even the hearsay evidence to base upon his conclusion.

THE COURT: Well, when we had our conference at the bench, this is why I asked you if you wanted a limiting instruction because it is relevant as to whether or not they had probable cause.

MR. LONG: Right.

THE COURT: And of course, he could talk to others for that purpose, and he could make that determination for that purpose. Would you--all right. I deny your motion to strike and to instruct the jury to disregard, well, to strike; but I do instruct the jury to disregard for the purpose--

Members of the Jury, disregard the witness' last answer relative to the elements of the cause of action, whether defendant was driving. It's a preliminary matter, it's been covered already in motions before the court. It's admissible for a limited purpose to show that the officer had a reason, this officer or some other officer at the scene, had a reason to arrest Mr. Aragon at the scene, but you should disregard it--that answer as to whether or not, for purposes of your determinations, Mr. Aragon was driving this motor vehicle at this point. You may go ahead.

MR. STONEY: Thank you.

Q. (By Mr. Stoney) Now, at some point in your investigation, you actually came back to the car where Mr. Aragon had been sitting; is that right?

A. Yes. I did.

Q. He was handcuffed, I believe, and seatbelted in the back seat of that car?

A. Yes. He was.

Q. Okay. Was the door open when you were talking to him?

A. Yes. I opened the door to talk to him.

Q. Okay. And you reached in and you asked him the question "who was your friend". Is that right?

MR. LONG: I would have to object, Your Honor, on the ground that this is--

MR. STONEY: I'll restate the question, Your Honor. I apologize, counsel.

Q. (By Mr. Stoney) What was the question that you asked him?

A. The question I asked him was, I asked him, "Where is the other person that was in the car with you, since I need to talk with him?"

Q. And did he respond to that?

A. He did.

MR. LONG: I'd have to object to the response, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And the ground?

MR. LONG: Well, he's handcuffed in the back of the police car, he's under arrest and he hasn't been given the Miranda warning, and they are interrogating him.

MR. STONEY: Your Honor, if I could remind the Court that underneath the voluntary exception in the Miranda warnings, the officer is allowed to ask a few basic questions. Here in this

question, the officer had no reason to believe that there would be an incriminating response come in. That's why the defendant's response becomes important, because if that response is incriminating, it's unresponsive to the question that he asked. His question is, "Where is your friend?" It has nothing to do with incriminating him in the process. The officer here is impounding a car, he's got a vehicle with him, he's got--and he is merely asking where the friend is, so it's completely unresponsive to what the officer has to say.

MR. LONG: But the response is incriminating, as we know.

THE COURT: Well, but what about the fact that it isn't responsive to the question?

MR. LONG: Well, it is responsive to the question.

THE COURT: He's received--testimony so far is that he's received information somebody else drove it.

MR. LONG: Well, but it is response to the question. It's just more encompassing than the question asked, which is what the last officer was attempting to do. Answer the question and then go on and explain some other things as well, that were not--

THE COURT: Objection is overruled. You may go ahead, Mr. Stoney.

MR. STONEY: Thank you.

Q. (By Mr. Stoney) Officer, what was the defendant's answer to the question, and I believe it was, "where is the other person?"

A. Mr. Aragon stated to me "there isn't anyone else with me, I was alone when I drove here."  
(Trial Trans., 100-104).

Officer Sharron Beckett who was also present during the conversation with the defendant also was allowed to testify concerning this conversation. The following dialogue occurred redirect examination by the prosecutor.

Q. Prior to the time when the defendant was wrestled and handcuffed to the ground, he did make some statements regarding the actual time that he had arrived, did he not?

A. Prior to that, I didn't hear a time frame.

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