1990

Layton City v. Frank R. Aragon : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

24			
25		* * *	

1 MR. STONEY: Thank you, your Honor.

2 MR. LONG: Your Honor, may we invoke the exclusionary
3 rule before the opening statements are made?

4 MR. STONEY: No objection, your Honor.

5 THE COURT: All right. The prosecution, of course,
6 has the right to have the principal witness at counsel table and
7 you may have that witness here now, if you wish, but whatever
8 you'd like to do.

9 MR. STONEY: Your Honor, the City does not elect to
10 have that. That will be fine.

11 THE COURT: All right. And the statute doesn't
12 require that witnesses be excluded for the opening statements,
13 but I think it's appropriate. And so my instruction to the
14 witnesses is, you're not to discuss with any other witness
15 your expected testimony nor that witness' testimony before you've
16 given your testimony, and I'll ask you to leave the courtroom
17 now. Thank you.

18 MR. LONG: Would you please instruct the sergeant on
19 that as well?

20 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

21 THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
22 Please go ahead.

23 MR. STONEY: Thank you. May it please the Court,
24 Mr. Long, Mr. Aragon, ladies and one gentleman of the jury.
25 It's now my opportunity to just give you a basic overview of

1 THE COURT: And the Court directs the jury to disregard
2 Counsel's last question to the Court. Pay no attention to it.
3 Objection sustained.

4 MR. STONEY: Your Honor, that objection is to the
5 characterization of favorable, as well, because it wasn't
6 necessarily favorable.

7 THE COURT: All right. And the jury will disregard it
8 in either respect.

9 Thank you.

10 And you may proceed with evidence, Mr. Stoney.

11 MR. STONEY: Thank you. The City would call Officer
12 Lynch.

13 JOHN LYNCH,
14 called as a witness by and on behalf of the City in this matter,
15 after having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as
16 follows:

17 DIRECT EXAMINATION

18 BY MR. STONEY:

19 Q State your full name, please, Officer.

20 A John Adam Lynch.

21 Q Your present position for the police department?

22 A A police officer, patrol division for Layton City.

23 Q How long have you been a police officer?

24 A Over 12 years.

25 Q Has that full time been with Layton City?

1 A No, sir.

2 Q What other agencies did you work for?

3 A I was with a department on the State of Maine, I
4 moved back here, 'cause it got too cold; and I've also been
5 with Davis County Sheriff's Office, and then with the Layton
6 City Police Department.

7 Q During that period of time, I assume that you've had a
8 chance to make numerous arrests for disorderly conduct or
9 delaying and obstructing?

10 A Yes, sir.

11 Q How about DUI?

12 A Yes, sir.

13 Q How many DUI arrests have you made?

14 A Several hundred, I guess.

15 Q During that period of time, you've been an officer
16 over the last 12 years, have you smelled what you believed to
17 be the odor of an alcoholic beverage?

18 A Yes, sir.

19 Q Is that almost a daily occurrence?

20 A Probably daily.

21 Q Okay. Now, do you associate that with DUI, in any way,
22 shape or form?

23 A No. I just associate that somebody's had alcohol.

24 Q Okay. On these DUIs where you've arrested, I assume
25 there has been an odor?

1 A Yes, sir.

2 Q Were you employed and on duty for Layton City on the
3 2nd day of April, 1989?

4 A Yes, sir. I was.

5 Q What were your duties on that date, do you recall?

6 A Patrol officer. I was assigned a cover shift from 8:00
7 p.m. to 4:00 a.m. that evening.

8 Q Okay. Now along about, I guess 1:45, in the early
9 morning hours, you received a call; is that correct?

10 A Yes, sir. I did.

11 Q And what was that call?

12 A We were to respond to a 366 Glen Avenue, on a report
13 of a Frank Aragon was hitting on his wife and was about to leave
14 in a black Monte Carlo.

15 Q Okay. Now, you don't know how that report came into
16 the dispatcher's office, or anything like that?

17 A Probably by telephone.

18 Q And many times when you arrive at the scene, the story
19 is different than what you're dispatched to, what is said there;
20 is that not true?

21 A Yes, sir.

22 Q Okay. You did arrive at 366 Glen Avenue, didn't you?

23 A Yes, sir.

24 Q And that is in Layton?

25 A Yes, sir.

1 Q Did you see the defendant, Mr. Aragon, there?

2 A Yes, sir.

3 Q Okay. And just for the record, the Mr. Aragon that
4 we're referring to, would you describe what he's wearing here
5 today?

6 A He's seated next to Mr. Long, he's wearing a herringbone
7 type jacket, a blue shirt, a blue tie with polka dots, I believe.

8 Q Thank you.

9 MR. STONEY: May the record reflect that he's
10 identified the defendant, your Honor?

11 THE COURT: Yes. Thank you. The record will so show.

12 Q (By Mr. Stoney) And where was Mr. Aragon at?

13 A He was standing on the right side of his vehicle.

14 Q Okay. And that was the black Monte Carlo?

15 A Yes, sir. It was a black Monte Carlo, in the driveway
16 at 366 Glen.

17 Q Was the Monte Carlo just there, not running and
18 everything?

19 A The vehicle was running at that time.

20 Q Okay. How could you tell that?

21 A Exhaust coming out and the motor was running, you
22 could hear it.

23 Q Were the lights on?

24 A I believe they were, I can't exactly recall at that
25 time.

1 Q Okay. Now, was anyone with Mr. Aragon?

2 A There was a woman standing by him that was later

3 identified as, she said his ex-wife, Rose Aragon.

4 Q Okay. Describe the condition that Rose was in when

5 you arrived there and first saw her.

6 A When I arrived there, Mr. Aragon and Rose were standing

7 in close proximity to each other.

8 Q Face-to-face?

9 A Yes. Sort of side-by-side, but they were looking at

10 each other, face-to-face.

11 Q Okay.

12 A Mrs. Aragon was upset, emotional, had tear stains,

13 mascara type that ran, make-up ran, and was upset, I could see,

14 and had red marks about her face and neck.

15 Q Just kinda blotches?

16 A Yes, sir.

17 Q Now like she'd been struck or anything that you could

18 say?

19 A Some type of--usually a struggle like that, a

20 wrestling around and that, gives you red marks.

21 Q Okay. Describe Mr. Aragon's condition when you arrived

22 and first saw him.

23 A He was standing next to the car, I believe he was

24 leaning on his car, but he was standing right there. He looked

25 somewhat emotional, himself, maybe upset, a little--quite somber--

1 Q Okay.

2 A --in appearance.

3 Q And describe the--his eyes. Do you recall what his eyes
4 were like?

5 A When I got close to him and started--and looked at him,
6 his eyes were red and glassy.

7 Q Okay. Did you also notice any alcoholic odors about
8 his person?

9 A Yeah. As soon as he began speaking, I noticed a strong
10 odor of alcohol.

11 Q And you could tell that that was coming from where?

12 A Mr. Aragon.

13 Q From--and from--

14 A From his mouth.

15 Q From his mouth?

16 A When he talked.

17 Q Okay. Was there anything else that Mr. Ara--well, let
18 me ask you this. How was Mr. Aragon standing when he stood and
19 spoke to you?

20 A When he turned and talked to me face--straight on, he--
21 if I remember right, he spread his legs a little bit in a wider
22 than shoulder-width stance.

23 Q And you've received a lot of training with respect to
24 intoxication or people that have imbibed just a little too much,
25 haven't you?

1 A Yes, sir.

2 Q Okay. Is the wide stance any indication of anything?

3 A Usually it's to get a better balance.

4 Q Okay.

5 A A sense.

6 Q So, much like I'm doing here, standing wider than my

7 shoulders?

8 A Yes, sir.

9 Q Okay. Was he moving at all?

10 A Not--I recall a little bit of weaving, but not a

11 whole--you know, not side to side or falling down.

12 Q Okay. What do you mean, a little bit of weaving?

13 You mean just move your upper torso?

14 A Upper torso.

15 Q Could you move for us?

16 A Usually just a little back and forth like that, or a

17 little side to side.

18 Q At that point, were you concerned that he was under--

19 possibly under the influence?

20 A Yes, sir.

21 Q Okay. So, your attention was immediately drawn to

22 that?

23 A Yes, sir. If somebody is like that, you immediately--

24 that's a--a flag goes up.

25 Q Uh huh. Why, for an officer, is that important for you

1 to realize that?

2 A You realize you're not dealing with someone who is
3 thinking clearly or is a hundred percent capable of what you're
4 going to say to them, and you're also going to find something
5 different happen.

6 Q And when you spoke to Mr. Aragon, did he give you any
7 indications that he might not be thinking clearly?

8 A Yes. I asked him what was going on, and he was--I
9 was told that I wasn't needed, that there was nothing wrong,
10 that the police weren't needed.

11 Q Those were his words?

12 A Yes, sir.

13 Q "There's nothing wrong, the police aren't needed."
14 Okay. Did you respond to that?

15 A Yes. I asked him his name, and to that, he refused to
16 give me his name. And I believe I asked him again, he still
17 refused, and then at that time, I informed him why I was there.

18 Q Which was because of a potential family fight or
19 argument?

20 A Yeah, and a dispatch call, and I was going to have to
21 do a report on it.

22 Q Okay.

23 A And that I needed his name, I believe I told him his
24 name and date of birth and that, for that. And I also warned
25 him that he could be arrested for delaying and obstructing.

1 Q Now, you're looking down at something here as you're
2 talking to us; what is that you're looking down at?

3 A That's a report that I filed in supplement to the main
4 body of the report.

5 Q Okay. And when did you write that report?

6 A That day after the incident, probably within a few
7 minutes after.

8 Q Okay. After you were through with Mr. Aragon, then
9 you sat down and wrote it?

10 A Yes, sir.

11 Q You said you got off shift at about 4:00, I believe?

12 A Yes, sir.

13 Q 4:00 in the morning. So, it was before you got off
14 shift?

15 A Oh. Yes, sir.

16 Q Now, you're looking at it today; is there a particular
17 reason why you keep looking down at it?

18 A To just refresh my memory on instances, and to make
19 sure I give it in the right context.

20 Q You've had some other incidences occur, obviously,
21 on your shift work since then; is that right?

22 A Yes, sir.

23 Q Is one of your concerns you don't want to confuse
24 anything of those with this particular incident?

25 A Yes, sir.

1 Q So, you want to be exact as to what happened here?
2 A As much as I can, sir.
3 Q Okay. And to your knowledge, is that report as
4 accurate as you know it was on that particular night?
5 A Yes, sir.
6 Q Okay. Now, you testified before about this particular
7 incident; is that correct?
8 A Yes, sir.
9 Q Okay. Did you tell the same story as you're telling
10 right here?
11 A Yes, sir. Might have changed a word or two.
12 Q All right. Now, you said that he wouldn't give you his
13 name and then you informed him that he could be arrested. Did he
14 respond at all to that?
15 A He gave me his name, Frank Aragon, and then he stepped
16 towards me at--right after giving me his name.
17 Q How did he step toward you when he stepped towards you?
18 A He just took a real quick step right--right towards me.
19 Q How far were you from--beginning, before he stepped
20 towards you?
21 A Oh, he was just out of arm's reach initially, away
22 from me.
23 Q Farther away than I am from you now, or--
24 A Probably actually a little closer, even.
25 Q Okay. About that distance?

1 A Probably. Yes, sir. Probably a foot, two feet off
2 my hand.

3 Q So, if you were standing right there, perhaps could we
4 say four feet away?

5 A Yes, sir.

6 Q From the person?

7 A Four to five.

8 MR. STONEY: May the--may the record reflect that I'm
9 approximately four feet away?

10 THE COURT: Yes. The record will show that.

11 MR. STONEY: Okay.

12 Q (By Mr. Stoney) Now, when he stepped forward to you,
13 how close did he step to you?

14 A Closer than my arm's length, probably--and I have a
15 32-inch sleeve, so within three feet.

16 Q And you stuck your arm out, didn't you?

17 A Yes, sir.

18 Q Why did you do that?

19 A Part of the training in that that we do, that's
20 maintain a safe distance for both my safety and his safety, also.

21 Q Okay. And did you have to actually push him back?

22 A I probably pushed him pretty good. I stuck my arm
23 right out and just the act of me pushing my arm out--

24 Q Okay.

25 A --pushed him back.

1 Q And what did he do or say at that point?

2 A At that time, he--he yelled, "Don't touch me mother
3 fucker. Come on, you want some trouble," and stepped back and
4 doubled up his fists.

5 Q Okay. And you're sitting there and you've got both
6 fists doubled up when you did that; is that what he did, is
7 doubled up both fists?

8 A I believe so. I just saw fists clench and that's--

9 Q Okay. What does that insinuate to you, when somebody
10 clenches their fists?

11 A That I'm about to get struck, that we're going to have
12 a fight.

13 Q Okay. What did you do?

14 A At that time, Sergeant Lybbert had stepped up behind
15 me, and I believe he saw Mr. Aragon double his fists at that
16 time, too, and he said, "You're under arrest." And I reached
17 out to take ahold of Mr. Aragon to place him under arrest.

18 Q And what did he do at that point?

19 A He backed up against his car and started to struggle
20 with us. I believe I got ahold of an arm and Sergeant Lybbert
21 also had come up right immediately also, and we struggled with
22 him for a minute there, and then he was taken to the ground and
23 handcuffed.

24 Q Now, you say he was taken to the ground; was there a
25 reason that you took him to the ground?

1 A Yes, sir. It's easier to control a person when they're
2 on the ground.

3 Q Is it part of the training you've received?

4 A Oh, yes, sir.

5 Q Okay.

6 A Especially somebody that's fighting and that. It's
7 easier if you put them on the ground, especially face-down, you
8 can find that it's very uncomfortable to be down that way, but
9 it's also easier to control them that way, then you handcuff
10 them, then you move them and it's safer for everyone.

11 Q Okay. During the struggle when you were up, was he
12 attempting to hit you?

13 A I believe so. There was a couple of arms flailing
14 about and probably went by my head a little bit, and Sergeant
15 Lybbert's. I concentrated on just getting him in a position
16 where I could handcuff him.

17 Q Was he pushing you?

18 A He was resisting quite violently.

19 Q Okay. When he hit the ground, was it a soft landing
20 when all of you went down to the ground like that?

21 A It was probably a good thump when he landed.

22 Q You fell with him; is that not correct?

23 A Yes, sir. We all went down kinda at the same time.

24 Q Okay. And was Mr. Aragon injured when he fell to the
25 ground?

1 A Yes. He received a scrape on one of his cheeks.

2 Q And was he bleeding a little bit in that spot?

3 A Yeah, it was sort of a weeping-type wound, you know,

4 where little kids call it rug burn or like if you skip on the

5 sidewalk, catch yourself, you take off the top layers.

6 Q Okay. Thank you. Now, you have since the time of

7 this incident, had a chance to determine if that--you keep

8 referring to it as Mr. Aragon's vehicle. Have you had a

9 chance to determine that, have you not?

10 A Yes, sir.

11 Q How did you do that?

12 A A 28, we call it, or a--

13 MR. LONG: Could we have a foundation for that question,

14 your Honor?

15 MR. STONEY: I haven't asked to have it admitted yet,

16 I'm just asking if he's had a chance to do it, your Honor. I'm

17 actually in the process of laying the foundation.

18 THE COURT: Well, he's asked--yeah, that's what I

19 gather he's doing, Mr. Long.

20 MR. LONG: Well, he's asking him questions about--I

21 thought, about the registration, I mean, I--

22 THE COURT: Well, he asked him, did he determine

23 ownership of the vehicle, and then he's asking how did you do

24 that?

25 MR. LONG: All that I'm asking, was it this morning?

1 THE COURT: Oh. I assumed he was back chronologically
2 at that time. You may go ahead and ask him when he did that.

3 Q (By Mr. Stoney) Was that this morning when you did
4 that?

5 A I ran a copy of one this morning.

6 Q Okay. But you actually did that on what occasion?

7 A I did that that night.

8 Q Okay. And you said you call it a 28?

9 A That's a terminology that we used. It's a 10-code--

10 Q Part of a 10-Code?

11 A It's a 1028, yes.

12 Q You're always--when you pull vehicles over, you're
13 always asking dispatch to run 28s on them, et cetera, and you
14 just checked out ownership--

15 A Yes, sir.

16 Q --or registration, all of that kind of good stuff?

17 A Yes, sir.

18 Q Okay. And you did that on that particular occasion?

19 A Yes, sir.

20 Q Okay. And you--

21 MR. LONG: Can we have a more concrete time, your Honor?
22 I mean, that night is a pretty big space of time.

23 THE COURT: Yes. It's appropriate.

24 THE WITNESS: The incident probably occurred about 1:45,
25 I would assume it was probably no later than 2:30. I--I'm not

1 sure. It was probably before I left the scene or the area, I
2 could check my logs on that; but it was before I got off shift
3 at 4:00 o'clock, and after 1:45.

4 Q (By Mr. Stoney) Were you the person that was put in
5 charge of handling the vehicle?

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